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TE OF O H I O ,  ) 

TY OF C U Y  

IN THE COURT OF GO 

ALAN B FAZEKAS, e t c .  , 1 
1 
1 

l a i n t i f  f 1 
vs * 

a H A ,  
1 
1 

D e f e n d a n t .  ) 

DEPOS I T IO RKOW I TZ , 

T U E ~ D A Y ?  APRIL 2, 1991 

- - -  

D e p o s i t i o n  of A L A  

w i t n e s s  c a l l e d  €or e x a m i n a t i o n  by t h e  

u n d e r  t h e  O h i o  R u l e s  of C i v i l  P r o c e d u r e ,  t a k e n  

G. Del i e o ,  a ~ ~ o ~ @ s s i o n a ~  

R e p o r t e r  a n d  o t a r y  P u b l i c  w i t h i n  a n d  f o r  t h e  

S t a t e  of O h i o ,  p u r s u a n t  t o  n o t i c e  a t  

Med ica l  C e n t e r ,  C l e v e l a n d ,  O h i o ,  c o m m ~ n c i n g  

a t  4 : 3 5  p.m. ,  t h e  d a y  and  d a t e  a b o v e  s e t  f o r t h .  

- - -  

R i c h a r d  G .  D o n i c o  
Morse ,  G a n t v e r  Hodge 
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On behalf of the Plaintiffs: 

J .  ~ I C H A ~ L  
Jeff r i es , 
1650 Nidla 
Cleveland, 

ehal f of the Defend 

arp, F u ~ g o n  

Cleveland, Ohio 44115 

- - -  

Richard G. DelMonico 
orse, Gantwerg & Hodge 
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R. M O N T ~ L E O  efore we go 

on t h e  record, let's get t 

under~tanding on the record. 

Burt is goin e direct. 

Examination of Br. Markowitz at this 

e f o r  use 

Burt and my 

get the doc 

move f o r  a continuance. the 

secondary or the cross ~ x a m i n a t i o n  

will also be at the expense  of 

ulton. 

MR. FULTO 

of my letter th 

0 ,  I didn'tt. 

a copy  of my letter that was hand 

delivered to y o u  that w s sent to 

Richard 6. D onieo 
Morse, Gantver Wodge 
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the judge? 

MR. T E L ~ Q ~ E  : 

g o i n g  to see 

you hand deliver it to 

for? 

so I eoul 

ARKQW ITZ , .D. 

of lawful age, called as witness b 

Defendant, pursuant to t io Rules of 

Civil Procedure, being b 

as hereinafter certified, dep 

TIQ 

Q. ould you pl s e  state 

sir? 

A .  Alan Narkowitz. 

Q -  And would ou give us a little bit of 

background, just your remedical e 

and your medical education? 

A .  I attended the University of Roc 

Richard G. 
Morse, Gantve 
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Q. 

A .  

Q =  

A. 

a .  
A .  

Q. 
A .  

a -  

A .  

Q. 

A .  

graduated in 1 9 5 5 .  I graduate any 

edical Colle e in 1970, and then traine 

general and eardiothor  e i e  surgar 

University ospitals, Cleveland, 

in 1 9 7 8 .  

ou are Board certified in what areas, 

doctor? 

In thoracic surgery, 

And a l s o  -as well as urgery its 

first certified in sur ery and t 

surgery? 

Y e s ,  it's -- 
Comb in ed? 

- -  condition. In 0th 

sit for your Boards in t h  

have to be certifie in general surger 

nd you have gone throu both of t 

Y e s  , includin recertification i 

surgery. 

ould you plain to th jury 

thoracic surgery is? 

Surgery of the chest and it's contents, 

That includes the c est as well as t 

heart? 

It's the heart, lungs, esophagus, diaphra 

ard 6. D e l  
Morse, Gantver 
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es t  w a l l  e 

Q -  ow w e  h a v e  h e r e  a copy of y o u r  c u r r i c u l u  

v i t a e ,  i s  t h a t  i t ,  s i r?  

A .  Yes. 

Q .  11 r i g h t .  I f  w e  c o u l d  hand t h  

c o u r t  r e p o r t e r  s o  h e  c a n  mark i t  as a n  

e x h i b i t  

t e? 

A .  es. 

: A l l  rf 

you mark t h a t  as E x h i b i t  1. 

( D e f e n d a n t ' s  D e p o ~ ~ ~ f ~  

i t  1 was a r k e d  f o r  

n t i f i c a t i o n  by t h e  r 

Q. ow d o c t o r ,  you may r e f e r  t o  your r e p o r t ,  

e re  come a t i m e  back  i n  1990 

I a s k e d  you to r e v i e w  c r t a i n  r e c o r  

r e g a r d i n g  t 1 r e c o r d s  of J 

u a a l ?  

A .  Y e s .  

9- And c e r t a i n  r e c o r d s  were f o r w a r d e  

is t h a t  n o t  t r u e ?  

A ,  Yes .) 

Q. nd would you t e l l  us what r e c o r d s  you  

r e v i e w e d  as you --  you c a n  l o o  

R i c h a r d  0 .  D e l  
H o r s e ,  G a n t v e r  
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report there. 

A .  Sure. I reviewed the hospital record of 

Jaquelyn Quaal and r. Liu's de 

the witness, the expert itness's report 

I think it was Dr. aufer, K- -U-F-E-R O 

Q *  nd did I ask you to review these records %o 

make a d e t e r ~ i n a t i  

r. Medina w 

of the medical pra 

A .  Yes. 

Q *  And did you come to certain o ~ ~ n ~ o ~ ~  

regarding r .  Medina's conduct in 

surgery after rewie these reear 

A .  Pes. 

Q. nd were these opinions base 

reasonable medical certainty and 

probability? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. nd in your report, 

forth five numbered aragraphs, 

not? 

A. Yes. 

Q *  Now I would like to ask YOU - -  
are asking all these 

Richard 0 .  
orse, Gantwe 
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A .  

Q =  

A .  

Q .  

A .  

Q .  

Q. 

3, 4, and 5. Each of t ese opinions was 

again base upon reasonable m e  

certainty and probability, is 

Yes. 

Based upon your expertise in t 

thoracic surgery and our trainin 

rticipation in this area, ri 

%'s correct. 

d o c t o r ,  is one hu 

usiness --  rofessionr I real1 

ent in the are 

surgery? 

Yes. 

ow, with respect to o 

conclusion id you eo 

R. jection P: 

the question. 

Go ahead. 

R. LEONE: 0 ct 

the form of % e q u e ~ t i o ~ ~  

r. Fulton, just to make certain 

that you have time to correct it. 

: All rig 

You came to these conclusion numbered nu E- 

one through five, did 

Richard G. D 
orse, Cantver 
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A .  

Q. 

A .  

Yes. 

nd what was your conclusion wit respect to 

to what is set forth in 

ame o b j e c t ~ o  

as to the form of the question. 

: Okay. Go ahead. 

ell, I reiterated that she ha 

leohol in 
!9 !4  

extensive hepatic cirr 

addition to an enlar spleen 

admission to Richmon 

for pain on inspiration and pal tion in t 

region of t terior and lateral 

ribs. Sh also had a istory o f - 

falls. A n d  that the c ~ ~ b i n ~ t i o n  of thos 

makes one seriously er about er histor 

as an alcoholic. 

I certainly can't deny that h a v i n ~  

previous intestinal b 

may contribute to her liver status, 

all points to one's concern about 

host resistance and her own ability to ma 

the proper levels of clotting factors. 

L E O N E :  Show a motion 

to strike the entirety of the 

Richard G. 
Morse, Gantverg & Hodge 
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Q. 

A .  

9. 

A .  

Q -  

A. 

Q. 

A .  

doctor's ans er as bein irrelevant 

and prejudicial. And further base 

upon an impro er question 

#r. Fulton. 

Okay. And did you ma e a deter ination fr 

the records regardin the condition of her 

spleen? 

t auto 

~ i g n i f i c a ~ t l ~  enlar 

basis of t 

And again pect to your statements, 

based upon responsi e medical ~ e r t a i ~ t  

to the condition of er liver an 

cirrhosis, was this d upon a revie 

the records that you 

Yes, that as descri in the autopsy 

findings . 
ow, did you review the recor s to deter 

just what her problems were in er l u n ~ ~  or 

what they ere attem ting to do t 

hospital? 

I did. 

All right. And what id you fin from the 

records, sir? 

ell, to t r y  to reconstruct what ha 

Richard G. 
orse, Gantve 
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Q. 

A .  

rs. Quaal, I believe that she one or 

more falls at home whic 

multiple fractured ri s; also result~d in 

perhaps some underlying lung contusion 

and/or the accumulation of bloo 

plural s p a c e ,  And t t this - -  
tendency is to t r y  a 

nd heal an 

that this came a tr 

a hsmothor 

hat in lay terms is 

you explain that to the 

Sure. A lung normally 

expanbe of 

inhale the left diaghra 

air into the lung and allows its surface to 

come up and abut against the left ch 

wall. 

If you have some ind of f o r  

material between the lun e chest w a  

it will actually create two problems. 

O n e ,  it may prevent the f u l l  excursi 

of the diaphragm; and two, it will prevent 

t h e  full expansion of the lungs, which you 

can't use the lung properly. If it i n w ~ l w @ ~  

Richard G. D 
Horse, Gantver 
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just a small area of lun , then it is n o t  

particular problem. I f  it inwolv the 

entire lung or half of one lun 

significant problem especially in some on^ 

that may have compromised pulmon 

functions to begin with. 

Q .  From your review of t 

d ~ r o ~ ~ ~ ~ l ~ t y ,  

elieve was 

were they looking for en they st 

surgical procedure? 
s- , '6 
\ -  d EONE: Sh n 

objection at the do 

el i eved. 

Q .  From the records, what y o u  could see fro 

them? 

A .  ell, they were concerned about 

~ b n o r ~ a ~ i t y  in her c est x- ray  

resence of multiple fractured ri 

something in the plural space. They 

entertained that there may have been some 

form of malignancy. 

She had an exploration base 

but also with the idea that the lu 

Richard G. 
Horse, Gantver 
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3 

have  been  t r a p p e d ,  a n  

t h i s  l u n g  t e y  m a y  w e l l  h a v e  been  a b l e  t o  

improve  h e r  pu lmonar  f u n c t i o n s .  

a .  

A .  

Q *  

A .  

A .  

A s  p a r t  of y o u r  r e v i e w  of t h e s e  r e c o r  

d o c t o r  - -  
Excuse  m e ,  c o u l d  w e  go  off t h e  r e c o r d ?  

E: Sure. 

r e c o r d s  t o  r e v i e w  t e n o t e s  m a  i n  t h e  

c h a r t  p r i o r  t o  t h e  op r a t i o n  as  

a f t e r  t h e  o p e r a t i o n ,  i s  t h a t  n o t  t r u e ?  

C o r r e c t  e 

And you had  a c h a n c e  t o  r e v i e  

t o  g i v e  u s  a n  o p i n i o n  w h e t h e r  you t h o u  

t h e  p r o c e  u r e s  which  ere u n d e r t a  

D r .  Medin w e r e  d o n e  i n  k e e p i n g  

s t a n d a r d s  of m e d i c i n e ,  is t h a t  n 

Y e s .  

nd j u s t  t e l l  u s  what  y o u r  f i n d i n  

b a s e d  a g a i n  upon r e a s o n a b l e  m e  

c e r t a i n t y  a n d  p r o b a b i l i t y  r ega r  

Dr. Medina d i d .  

MR. E: Object a g a i n  
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Q. 
A .  

Q. 

A .  

t o  t h e  form of t h e  q u e s t i o n  s o  t 

you h a v e  a c h a n c e  t o  c u r e  i t  r i g  

here  and  now. 

Go a h e a d .  

To t r y  and r e c o n s t r u c t  h a t  w a s  d o n e ,  t 

l e f t  c h e s t  w a s  e x p l o r e d ,  m u l t i  

ere s e n t  of areas  t h a t  w e  

a l  l o o k i n  

became a p ~ ~ r e n t  t h a t  t is  w a s  n o  tumor 

b u t  a t r a p p e  l u n g ,  t h e  l u n g  

d e c o r t i c a t e d .  And t h e  t e r m  d e c o r t i c a t i o ~  

means removing  a c o r t e x  of m a t e r i  

t r a p p i n g  t e u n d e r l y i n  l u n g  s a n  

be tween  t h e  l u n g  a n d  t h e  c h e s t  w 

of t h e  t i m e  t h i s  i n v o l v e s  t h e  e n t i r e  lua  

i t ' s  v e r y  r a r e  t h a t  i t  is e v e r  j u s t  c o n f i  

t o  one  s m a l l  a rea .  nd I b e l i e v  

e d i n a  d i d .  

nd d i d  you h a v e  a n  o c c a s i o n  t o  r e v ~ e w  t 

t h e  amount of t i s s u e  t h a t  had  

from the l u n g  and r e v i e w e d  i n  p a t  

Well, as m e n t i o n e d  i n  t h e  p a t h o l o  

2 0  grams  of pulmonary  t i s s u e  w e r e  s rubmi t t e  

So t h i s  was not a major l u n g  r e s e c t i o n .  

Now, w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  rs. Q u a a l ' s  c o n d i t i o n  

R i c h a r d  G .  Del 
Morse,  G a n t v e r g  br Hodge 
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15 

immediately after the surgery, at did t 

hospital records reveal? 

A ,  Revealed that she w a s  extubated, t 

taken off the ventilator right 

surgery. That she was maintaine ithout 

respiratory support for the first four da 

at which time she required re-intu 

placement b v~ntilatQr. 

that p o i n t  er clinic 

deteriorate. She ult 

what appeared to be multiple episodes of 

sepsis an then subse uent s e ¶ u @ n t i ~ ~  

multiple or an failure, a resu 

of the se sis, with her 

expiration. 

Q -  And would you tell the court and jury just 

exactly what is sepsis? 

A .  Sepsis is usually un~ontrolled in 

That is infection from some sourc 

rather than stay localized has otten into 

the blood stream, and by virtue of it's 

presence in the blood stream has create ]I 

sorts of other problems in virtually any 

organ system. And it can destro 

function, it can certainly compromise liver 

Richard G. Del 
Morse, Cantverg 8 Hodge 
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Q =  

A .  

Q -  

A ,  

A .  

Q. 
A .  

9. 

A .  

Q. 

f une ti on , rain function, lun f uric t i on 

virtually anything. 

Did you come to an o inion, again n 

reasonable medical cert 

probability, as to w at the cause of 

rs, Quaalas death was? 

Yes. 

I believe it w a s ,  as 

organ failure resultin 

post-operative period, 

ow, you had an occasion to re 

report of Dr, Kaufer, id you  not? 

I did, 

I don't kno OU? 

I don't. 

You indicated that you  had some 

what, locating the file that ha 

forwarded t o  you? 

Yes. 

All right. ow Dr. ufer, in his report OR 

page 2, indicates that "the sur 

procedure certainly as indicat 

appears to have been erformed properly." 

DO you agree with that s ~ a t e m e n t ?  

iehard 6. Del 
orse, Cantver 
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A .  

(2- 

A .  

Q =  

7 

I do. 

R. 

to read the rest of that or just 

e that one statement out of 

there? 

Show an objection t 

last questi 

ow doctor, again ,  ba 

the records provide 

stated heretofore, 

review of those rec 

skill as a thoracic 

opinion, based upon 

certainty and proba 

edina's care of this patient, the 

operation he performed, was in 

the standards o€ thoracic surgeo 

ave an opinion? 

I do. 
:*, .. 
I ,  

:. p1 f 

objection again --  
a g a i n  as t o  the form o€ the 

so you can correct any error in it. 

Okay. Do you have an o 

Richard G, D e l  
orse, Gantverg & Bodge 
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A .  

Q .  

A .  

Q. 

A .  

1 

I d o .  

11 r i g h t .  nd what  is t h a t  o 

R e  MO LEONE: 

o b j e c t i o n  a p1 and  ~ o t i Q n  t o  s t r i  

t h e  a n s w e r .  

I b e l i e v e  i t  m e t  t h e  

ca re .  

nd  what , i n ,  a r e  

op ini on? 

a c c e p t e d  st  

e basi o r  a t  

I f  we a c c e  t t h e  f a c ,  t h a t  a% ha 

l u n g  t h a t  w a s  t r a p p e  by a c h r o n i c  

hemothorax ,  e s p e c i a l 1  

v e r y  compro i s e d  pulmonary  f u n c t ~ o ~ ~ ,  t 

i n d i c a t i o n s  € o r  e x R l o r a t i o n  a r e  

h e r e  i n  t ope  t h a t  t h e  pulmo 

f unc t i ons o u l d  improve  o n c e  t h  

a l l o w e d  t o  f u l l y  e x ~ a n d .  

it y p r e s e n t e d  w i t h  --  
a i n f u l  r i b  f r a c t u r e s  and  a n  a 1 c h  

f i l m ,  so t h e  e x p l o r a t i o n  was a p  

What t h e y  f o u n d  a t  t h e  t i m e  of s u r g e r  

a f t e r  t h e y  c o u l d  not rove t h a t  s 

a n y t h i n g  m a l i g n a n t  as, i n  f a c t ,  t r a p p e  

1 ung , whi c t h e y  d e c o r t i c a t e d  - -  
say t h e y  I wean Dr. Medina.  

R i c h a r d  G .  
o r s e ,  Gantwe 
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And her post-operative course 

initially fairly benign in that s 

extubated immediately and for four days w 

able to ventilate hers If. She t 

required re-intubation, placement back on 

ventilator, probably as a result of 

infection that had otten into h 

stream, an ~ ~ n t l ~  to 

on all the organ sys 

Oman who s c o m ~ r ~ ~ i s e  

compromise ly poor liver functi 

and an enlarged spleen, which I 

ould have severely im 

r espons e , er own i m ~ u n  

hatever insult came s a  

result of that she ultimately died. 

Q. Do you have an opinion, basad u 

reasonable medical certainty an 

probabilit er the S Q  calle 

limited procedures referred to r. K a u f ~ ~  

would have dealt with the problems of the 

left lung that was seen in Mrs. 

A. I don't kno what limited procedure eoul 

have been done here, other than 

done. A lung resection, which 

Richard G .  
Morse, Gantwerg 6 Hodge 
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appropriate here, is a much big 

operation. I mean, even a lo 

much bigger procedure than wha 

as done, in fact, d 

remove - -  it removed virtually no lung 

tissue, except minor pieces; di 

from this y's ~ u l m o n a r y  fun 

ct expan 

functions 

ave been ost-operati 

this lady was able to maintain 

most like1 in the o n ~ ~ a u g h t  o 

infection she 

9 -  ow doctor, 

not, to review the consen 

I think if we can re€er to that, if we c 

f i n d  that. 

ow, I've asked you consent Q -  
form that's in pita1 r e c ~ r  

rs. Quaal, right? 

A .  Yes. 

Q -  And what is the date on that eo 

A ,  January llth, 1987. 

Q -  nd what does that consent for refer to 

Richard G. D 
orse, Gantwer 
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A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

A .  

a -  

the procedure that as to be un 

1 

Left exploratory thoracotomy, 

1 obec t omy . ---- ____ - _^-- - 

nd how does a lobectomy itself eo 

the procedure that as underta 

Dr. Medina? 

produces loss of lu tissue e 

On the  left side ther 

removing bne lobe would remove in 

of the patient's lun tissue on t 

A procedure that Mrs. 

not have tolerated very easily. 

more extensive proce 

Other ̂ than the sepsis 

rob1 ems wit hat came ut 

through the ordinance of 

there any other factors which contribute 

in your opinion, to her death at the 

hospital? 

0 .  

TELEONE: Show an 

objection once gain as to the f 

of the question. 

0 ,  I believe I've discussed t all. 

All right. ow, a number of questions 

Richard G. Del 
orse, Gantverg 
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A .  

Q. 

A .  

a s k e d  of Y O U  on t h e  

P l a i n t i f f ' s  c o u n s e l  h e r e  regar  

i s c h a r g e  summary a n  h e  v a r i o u s  

t h a t  d i s c h a r g e  summa 

y o u r s e l f  t o  t h a t ?  

P see your 

E: I t 

you are look for? 

R. FUL : P e s .  

On t h a t  page t h e r e  is a column 

d i a gn os i s '' a n  11 i t e m s  a r e  l i s t  

t h a t  n o t  c o r r e c t ?  

P e s  s 

And g o i n g  t h r o u g h  t h e s e  -- a n  i n  1 

YOU to, i n  r e w i e w i n  t h e s e  records t h a t  

o p i n i o n s  s h o u l d  b e  a s e d  upon r 

m e d i c a l  c e r t a i n t y  and  p r o b a b i l i  

W i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  

 hematoma^ E x p l a i n  t o  

was? 

e l l ,  hematoma is  t h e  s a m e  t h i n g  as a l u n  

c o n t u s i o n .  nd t h a t  c a n  - -  
j u s t  l i k e  a b l a c k  and  b l u e  m 

s u s t a i n e d  by t h e  l u n  

R i c h a r d  G .  Del 
orse, G a n t v e r  
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accompanies fracture 

Q -  nd Number 2 indicates w 

have a left r i b  fracture, 

A .  I think s e had multiple 

yes. 

a *  Questions were asked of you by 

onteleone regard acute res 

d i s t r e s s  syn 

A .  Y e s .  

Q =  nd what is that, as f 

diagnosis? Is that a --  
A .  Well, it's the develop ent of an ina 

to use your lungs e f ~ i c i e n t l ~  res 

difficulties in ox 

rid of carbon dioxid , which are 

functions of the lung, caused b 

viral infections that may be occult or 

caused by trauma, or c used or ~ c c u ~ r i ~ g  f 

a post-oper tive p e r i o  

time it's a non-spsci fc diagnosis t 

describes that clinical constell 

signs in a setting of a chest 

shows diffuse abnor a l i t i e s  on t 

film of both lungs. 

Q. r. Monteleone asked you questions regar 

Richard 0 .  Del 
Morse, Gantver 
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A .  

A .  

Q *  

A .  

this bronchopleural fistula; an at i 

that? 

It's an a b n o r m ~ l  connection b 

inside of the lung an 

atmospheric pressure. I f  you e a tear i 

a lung it ill creat 

fistula in which wh 

will go out t 

rather than just go 

Is this something t 

type of an operation that tak 

of someone's chest? 

Yes. 

nd on number 9, it s 

intravascular coagulo 

that? 

Disseminated intravascular coa  

DIC, is co monlg over 

resence of mu1 tiple 

different sites in a 

the diagnosis you would have t 

consumption of basic clotting factors as 

well as t h e  development of fiber an 

products, hich indicate that y o ~ ' ~ e  

actually chewing up your clottin 

ichard G. 
Horse, Gantw 
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Q. 

A ,  

Q -  

A .  

Q -  
A .  

Q .  

h i c h  is  t h  n a l l o w i n  ou t o  i n  

a l m o s t  a n  o u r  body.  

And t h e r e  i s  a l s o  a n  i n d i c a t i o n  

number 10 of c o n g e s t i  e h e a r t  f 

11, p r o g r e s s i v e  r e n a l  f a i l u r e ;  is t h a t  

c o r r e c t ?  

Yes 0 

And t h a t ' s  i n d i c a t ~ w  

]I a n d  hen: c o n d i t i Q n ~  E t -  

o c c u r r e d  f o u r  d a y s  f t e r  t h e  s u r  

e l l ,  t h e s e  - -  t h e s e  - -  
R. ~ E O ~ E :  

j e c t i o n  as t o  when t 

i t i o n s  o c c u r r e d .  

Go a h e a d .  

I t h i n k  t h e s e  m a y  h a v e  o c c u r r e  

u t  t h e y  p r o b a  

e r e  r e f e r r i n  

e f f e c t  on t o s e  d i ~ ~ ~ r e n t  o r g a  

nd a g a i n ,  b a s e d  u on y o u r  r e v  

m a t e r i a l s  g i v e n  to you h i c h  you have  spo 

a b o u t ,  b a s e d  a g a i n  upon y o u r  e x  

Board c e r t i f i e d  t h o r a c i c  s u r g e o  

y o u r  e x p e r i e n c e  i n  p e r f o r m i n g  s 

t h i s  t y p e ,  d o  you h a v e  a n  o p i n i  

R i c h a r d  6 .  o n i c o  
o r s e ,  Gantwer  Wodge 
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A .  

Q. 
A .  

A ,  

Q -  

A .  

Q *  

A .  

Q. 

A .  

hether or not the tre 
b2*.-, /- > L d  

/ p w  
rs. Quaal by Dr. edina w a s  in ay - 2  

substandar .i 

I do. 

R. E: 0 et to t 

form of the question. 

nd what is that opinion? 

it met t 

nd that’s based u on ~ ~ ~ s o n ~ ~ l  e ical 

certainty and proba ility, is it not? 

Correct 

tion to stri 

answer 

And doctor, you have erformed a. ber 8 

operations in the chest area, have 

-------- Y e s .  

ow many t ~ o r a c o t o ~ i ~ ~  

over the last three 

Thoracotomies for lung problems? 

For problems similar to what ve here i 

rs. Quaal? 

Oh, for decortication specificall 

are actually freeing u 

Richard G. Del 
Morse, Gantver 
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a .  
A .  

B .  

A ,  

Q. 

A .  

7 

e do about 15 to 20 a ear. Itos, in t 

ov e rw he 1 min scheme ob things, ot 

h frequency proce 

nd the reasons f o r  at? You 

d o n e t  see trapped lu 

~ n d i v i d u ~ l ~ ?  

0 ,  lanQSt 0 

antibiotic coverage. 

ow, are there any ot er opinions 

came to in your letter of Dece 

December 17, 1990 that we have 

I d o d t  believe so. 

questions. 

- - -  
osition Conclude 

Richard G. D e l  
orse, Gantver 
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THE STATE OF OHIO, ) 

TY OF C ~ Y A H ~ G ~ . )  

I, Richard 6. DelXonico, a ublic 

within and for the State of Qhio, dul 

commissioned an y certify 

that the above-named ALA 

by me, before t 

orn to tes 

nd nothin but the trut 

2 

deposition as above set fort 

writing by me by eans of s 

transcribed into typewritin 

by ~omputer-aided transcription; that - 

deposition was ta nt to agree 

time and place aforesaid; that I am not relatiw 

or attorney of either party or other 

interested in the event of t is action. 

EREOF, I hereunto s ha 

and seal of office at Glevel nd, Ohio, 5t 

day of April, 1991. 

- 
R ubl ic 
Within and for t 

My Commission Expires April 18, 1993. 

Richard 6 .  D onico 
orse, Cantver Hodg 
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THE STATE OF OHIO, ) 

COUNTY O F  CUYAHQGA-) 
) 5s: 

FAZEKAS 1 
1 

Plaint iff, ) 

w s - -  

AMERITRUST COMPANY , N A  
1 
3 

Defendant, ) 

DEPOSITION O F  A L A N  MARKOWITZ, ,D - 
TUESDAY, APRIL 3 0 ,  1991 

- - -  

Deposition of Alan Markowitz. M - D , ,  a 

witness called f o r  examination by the Defendant 

under the Ohio Rules o f  Civil Procedures taken 

before  me, Richard 6 ,  DelMonica, a Professional 

Reporter and Notary Public within and For the 

State o f  Ohio, pursuant to notice at 

Medical Center, Cleveland. Ohio, commencing 

at 4:ES p.rn,, the day and date above set forth- 

- - -  
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APPEARANCES: 

On behalf of the Plaintiff: 

J.. M I C H A E L  
Jeffries, tiube & Monteleone C o - ,  L P A  
1650 Midland Building 
Cleveland, O h i o  44115-1027 

On behalf o f  the Defendant: 

BURT F U L T O  
Gal lagher-, Sharp , Fulton & ~ o ~ ~ a ~  
7 t h  Floor Bulkley Building 
Cleveland, Ohio 44115 
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MR - ~ O N T ~ L E O N E :  r -  Fulton 

concluded his direct examination as 

is evidenced by the transcript an 

now wants to reopen his direct 

examination as I’m about to begin 

the cross examination and I donst 

think it’s proper, so I have an 

objection to it. 

M R ,  FULTON: Well, my position 

is this was concluded April %nd, 

1991, we were in quite a bit ~f a 

hurry this day. It is a- 

discretionary matter to k e o p e n  i t ,  

we never were able -- it was quite 

late in the evening and I think I 

just have these last few quest io 

and we will let the court decide- 

M R .  MONTELEONE: It was 4 ‘ 3  

when we left. 

MR. FULTON: It was for you $ 0  

catch an airplane. Let t 

know that too- 

MR, MONTELEONE: Okay, Burt. 

- - -  
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MARKQWITZ, M ,D - 
of lawful age, called as a witness by the 

Defendant, pursuant to the Ohio Rules o f  

Civil Procedure, being by me first previously 

sworn, as hereinafter certified, deposed and 

said as follows: 

DIRECT E X A M I N A T ~ Q  

R ,  FULTON: 

Q ,  Doctor, as you know, this is April 3Oth, 

1991, and your deposition commenced on 

Tuesday, April 2nd, 1991, And 1 9 d  like to 

just reopen up the direct for a -few 

quest ions - 
First of all , you have given us your 

curriculum vitae which w e  have marked as an 

exhibit, but just give us a little bit o f  

background, would you please, with respect 

to what you have done in the area o f  lung 

surgery, cardiovascular surgery, Could you 

tell the court and jury that, please? 

MR I MONTELEONE: 

objection, continuing objection, so 

I don’t have to interrupt- 

A -  Well, being a thoracic surgeon means that 
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YOU operate on the chest and its contents. 

We specialize in surgery o f  the lung and 

surgery o f  the heart - The surgery of the 

lung that we do largely revolves around lung 

cancer and actually lung infections.. And 

the lung infections i n  particular are 

predominantly either dealing with Bung 

abscesses o r  dealing with empyemas, which 

are infections of the pleural space, such as 

involved in a case similar to this, 

In terms o f  volumes, is that what -- OT 

in terms o f  percentages o f  what w e  do, 

What is your actual position right here at 

Mt, Sinai? 

I’m Chief o f  the Division o f  Cardiothoracic 

Surgery I 

And o f  what does that division consist? 

Well, that means supervising the 

administration o f  the division that oversees 

the surgery of the chest and its contents- 

S o  all those people that operate on heart, 

lung. chest wall, diaphragm, esophagus, et 

cetera, And then we also have an active 

part in the general surgery training 

program - 
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All right.. Now. YOU have been Chief o f  

Surgery what length o f  time? 

Ten years., 

And you have set forth here a number o f  the 

presentations you have made relative to your 

specialty field, have you not, in this 

exhibit, your curriculum vitae? 

Yes, I believe they’re listed, 

And about how many operations do you do, 

say, in a t ime period? Whether it’s a mont 

or week? 

Well , the volume o f  -- our volume is about 

to 500 cases a year o f  which app~oximately 

about 350 to 400 are cardiac and about I 0 0  

are lung, 

Now, doctor, you, back on April 2nd, 1 9 9 1 ,  

gave a number o f  opinions, d i d  you not? 

Y e s .  

With respect to questions I had asked you, 

is that not true? 

Correct - 
And were these opinions based upon medical 

certainty and probability within the 

standards o f  discipline o f  physicians who 

perform thoracic o r  lung surgery like 
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yoursel f?  

Yes. 

A l l  right, And these last few questions, 

Since your deposition commenced ~ r a  

April 2nd, 1991, I forwarded you, did 1 n o t ,  

the complete deposition o f  P1aintiff”s 

expert Dr, Kaufer’? 

Yes - 
Did you have a chance to review t h a t ?  

I did, 

And this last question, 

Had, on the date of surgery of t h e  

decedent here, M r s  uaal had on that d a t e  

her chest been closed without further 

surgical procedure. do you have an opinion, 

based upon reasonable medical certainty and 

probability, as to what her prospects woul 

be’? Do you have an opinion? 

M R ,  M O N T E L E O N E :  Show an 

object ion - 
I do, 

What is that, s i r ?  

R - MONTELEONE: Mot ion to 

strike, 

Well, I don’t think much would ave changed. 
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lung, and with restricted pulmonary function 

studies and an incision in the chest, if you 

don’t accompl ish that and improve the 

patient ’s pulmonary functions, then the 

patient’s not going to gel any better, 
4. 

This woman was actually getting worse.. t 

And to have closed this up and done nothin 

would not have in any way made her any 

better, in fact, would have made her 

substantially wors 

M t  io made for 

M R ,  FULTON: No further 

quest ions. 

- - -  

CROSS E X ~ M I ~ ~ T I O N  

BY M R ,  MONTELEONE- 

GI- D r -  Plarkowitz, I am Mike Monteleone and I 

represent the family o f  Jacqueline Quaal i n  

this wrongful death case, I guess 

Mr, Fulton informed you that I would be 

given an opportunity to ask you some 
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questions on cross examination? 

Correct - 
S o  that we can unde 

function in this ca 

not a treating doct 

were you? 

NO - 
YOU never. saw this 

No I 

And the doctors at 

Hospital never call 

opinion regarding t 

her while she was a 

did they? 

That’s correct ., 
And the family o f  c 

ask for your profeE 

happened i n  t h i s  C E  

That’s correct - 
It was the lawyer cr 

M r .  Fulton, who cor 

in this case’? 

I rale at the word 

opinion, I’ll give 

patient doesn’t hi1 

stand your role, your 

e, if you will, you were 

r o f  Jacqueline 

ady before she died? 

ichmond Heights General 

d and asked for your 

e care and treatment o f  

ive at Richmnnd Heights, 

Jacqueline uaal didn*t 

ional  pinion as to what 

e ,  did t h e y ,  sir? 

o represents the bank 

acted you and hired you 

ire. If you ask f o r  

ou that As much as a 

his surgeon- 
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F o r g i v e  m e ,  i t  w a s  p e r h a p s  j u s t  a poor  

c h o i c e  of words? 

Q k a y ,  t h a n k  y o u -  

M R ,  FULTON: I do h a v e  a n  

o b j e c t i o n  t o  t h e  word b a n k  t o o ,  

I am i n v o l v e d  a t  t h e  r e q u e s t  of r -  F u l t o n  

who a s k e d  for my o p i n i o n ,  t o  r e v i e w  t h e  

records and g i v e  a n  o p i n i o n ,  

Well, j u s t  s o  t h e  j u r y  is c l e a r ,  t h i s  i s n ” t  

s o m e t h i n g  y o u  a r e  d o i n g  free o f  s e r v i c e  or 

f r e e  of  c h a r g e ,  is i t ?  

T h a t ’ s  c o r r e c t ,  I t h i n k  w e  e s t a b l i s h e d  t 

i n  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  b e f o r e -  

T h i s  d e p o s i t i o n  is t h e  o n e  t h e  j u r y ’ s  goin 

t o  see .  So l e t  m e ,  l e t  m e  a s k  y o u :  

D o c t o r ,  w h a t  is i t  t h a t  y o u  h a v e  

c h a r g e d  f o r  y o u r  p r o f e s s i o n a l  fee t o  

Mr, F u l t o n  so f a r  i n  t h i s  case? 

I t ’ s  a n  h o u r l y  fee  o f  $250 a n  h o u r  f o r  

r e v i e w  a n d  $500 a n  h o u r  f o r  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ,  

s o  - 
And a s  o f  A p r i l  2 n d ,  Y O U  h a d  t o l d  u s  t h a t  

y o u  h a d  c h a r g e d  $1250 for t h e  f i v e  h o u r s  Q f  

r e v i e w  a n d  t h e n  t h e r e  w a s  a n  a d d i t i o n a l  500 

f o r  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ?  
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Correct ., 

All right, Is there another 500 for this 

deposit ion today? 

Depends on how long it takes. 

Well, assuming it take takes as long as the 

last one, an hour o r  so, is it another $50 

then? 

Y e s  - 
S o  then we are up to about what , 

something around there? 

I believe that would be about what lit waul 

be - 
All right.. D r ,  Markowitz, have you, sir, 

testified in other medical/legal cases in 

the past on behalf o f  other doctors sued for 

medical negligence? 

I have testified in depositions and in court 

cases in negligence trials both for 

plaintiff and for defense, 

About how many, any idea? 

In the past la years? 

That’s good enough. 

19ve reviewed, do generally about three OT 

f o u r  a year. 

All right, S o  we are talking between 30 and 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1 1  

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

40 

4 0  m e d i c a l  n e g l i g e n c e  cases? 

C o r r e c t  - 
And w o u l d  i t  be  f a i r  t o  s a y  t h a t  

t h r e e - f o u r t h s  of t h e  t i m e  or 75 p e r c e n t  of 

t h e  t i m e  y o u  h a v e  come i n t o  c o u r t  y o u  

t e s t i f y  o n  b e h a l f  of t h e  doctor  w h o p s  b e i n g  

sued’?  

T h e  v a s t  m a j o r i t y  of t h e s e  Rave not  g o n e  t o  

c o u r t  - Of t h o s e  c a se s ,  p r o b a b l y  o n l y  t w o  o r  

t h r e e  h a v e  g o n e  t o  c o u r t  - 
And I ’ d  s a y  t h a t ’ s  a good g u e s s .  

P r o b a b l y  75 p e r c e n t  w o u l d  b e  f o r  d e f e n s e s  25 

p e r c e n t  w o u l d  b e  f o r  p l a i n t i f f ,  ~ 

A l l  r i g h t ,  

NO W,  y o u  h a d  a n  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  look  

t h e  r eco rds  i n  t h i s  case r e g a r d i n g  

J a c q u e l i n e  Q u a a l ,  t r u e ?  

T r u e  - 
S h e  w e n t  i n t o  R i c h m o n d  H e i g h t s  o s p i t a l  lore 

J a n u a r y  5 t h ,  1987 w i t h  a f r a c t u r e d  r i b  or 

f r a c t u r e d  r i b s  a n d  a n  a b n o r m a l  c h e s t  x - r a y s  

co r r ec t ?  

C o r r e c t  - 
And s h e  came o u t  d e a d ,  d i d n ’ t  s h e ,  d o c t o r ?  

S h e  d i e d  i n  t h e  h o s p i t a l ,  y e s .  
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The doctors who were taking care o f  her, 

including Dr, Medina suspected a possible 

cancer but we can agree that she did not 

have cancer, did she, doctor? 

We can agree that she did not- 

There was no evidence that Jacqueline Quaal 

had a malignancy, is that true? 

True - 
All right I And she did not die from any 

kind o f  cancer then? 

Correct I 

All right, Now, is it true doctor, that a 

autopsy is not done in every single case i n  

which a patient dies? 

Correct - 
Does it usually require some kind o f  unusual 

o r  unexplained death before an autopsy is 

done? 

No, it really -- that may be the criteria 

that the coroner might use, but it’s not a 

criteria for any death that occurs in a 

hospital, If it was required by law 

obviously there would be a great deal of 

autopsy performed. B u t  it’s really at the 

request o f  the attending physician, and wit 
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the agreement of next of kin that any 

autopsy is performed, because you learn a 

great deal from it. 

And you know in this case that the family 

acceded to the request or  accepted the 

request, if you will, of the doctors to do 

an autopsy on Jacqueline Quaal? 

Correct - 
ow, you wrote a letter to Mr, Fullton in 

which you indicate that Jacqueline Quaal w a s  

obese despite previous intestinal bypass 

surgery - 
You recall that statement that you 

made, doctor? 

I do- 

How much did she weigh when she was admitte 

to Richmond Heights General Hospital on 

January 5, 1987? 

A s  I understood i t ,  it was close to 208 

pounds - 
All right, Where do you get that 

information from, doctor? 

Well, when I had reviewed the chart I 

thought that was the admitting weight o. 

I’m going to show you a copy of the official 
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h o s p i t a l  c h a r t .  T h e y  d i d  a n  a d m i t t i n g  

p h y s i c a l  e x a m i n a t i o n  o n  h e r  o n  J a n u a r y  5, 

1987 - 
w o u l d  y o u  be n i c e  e n o u g h  t o  t a  

a t  t h a t  p lease?  

Um-hum, c e r t a i n l y ,  

T h e y  w e i g h e d  t h e  p a t i e n t  o n  J a n u a r y  5 ,  19 

d o c t o r ,  blhat w a s  h e r  w e i g h t  a t  t h a t  t i m e ?  

I s  t h a t  w h a t ’ s  w r i t t e n  down h e r e  o n  t h i s ?  

L o o k  a t  t h e  t o p  o f  t h e  page ,  i t  9 s  got  t h e  

v i t a l s ,  v i t a l  s i g n s ,  

O k a y ,  I t  s a y s  141  p o u n d s ,  

A l l  r i g h t .  And t h a t ” s  s i g n e d  b y - o n e  o f  t h e  

d o c t o r s  who e x a m i n e d  h e r ,  i s n ’ t  i t ?  

C o r r e c t  - 
A l l  r i g h t ,  

I t ’ s  n o t  l i k e l y  t h a t  h e  w e i g h e d  t h e  p a t i e n t ,  

I t ’ s  l i k e l y  t h e  n u r s e  w e i g h e d  t h e  p a t i e n t  o n  

adm i ss i o n  - 
Well, t h e n  why d o n ’ t  w e  l o o k  a n d  see w h a t  

t h e  n u r s e  wro te  down? 

I d o n ’ t  h a v e  a n y  r e a s o n  t o  d i s p u t e  t h a t  s h e  

w e i g h e d  141  p o u n d s  i n s t e a d  o f  2 0 0 ,  I t ’ s  n o t  

r e a l l y  a n  i s s u e .  

wel l ,  t h a t  was a m i s t a k e  t h e n ?  
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Yes - 
All right- 

That may have been an impression from what 

she had been prior to her intestinal bypass 

or  something like that - 
But we can agree, however, that when she was 

admitted to the hospital on January 5, 1987 

that she weighed a 140 pounds, thereabouts’? 

Correct ., 
6311 right, And for a woman who was five 

foot one and a half tall, would YOU consider 

that to be obese, doctor? 

ot particularly obese, no, 

The impression most likely stems f ro  

the fact she had intestinal bypass for 

obesity in the past, That’s probably where 

I got the figure of 200 pounds. 

That had happened in 1981, and we 

she had had a gastrointestinal bypass and 

that she had lost an awful lot o f  weight 

then? 

Correct .I 

And I can understand perhaps you just, you 

had assumed that she weighed 200 but in fact 

she only weighed 140 pounds on admission to 
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t h e  h o s p i t a l  - 
I t h i n k  I h a d  s e e n  r e f e r e n c e  t o  t h e  n u m b e r  

o f  p o u n d s  t h a t  s h e  h a d  l o s t  a n d  t h e  n u m b e r  

o f  p o u n d s  t h a t  s h e  h a d  s t a r t e d  from a n d  

t h a t ’ s  w h e r e  I b e l i e v e  I got t h e  n u m b e r  200 

b u t  I ’ l l  have t o  go back  a n d  c h e c k ,  

W e l l ,  p e r h a p s  y o u  go t  t h e  n u m b e r  200 b e c a u s e  

a t  a u t o p s y  t h a t  w a s  done o n  F e b r u a r y  3rd, 

1987, t h e  d o c t o r  t h a t  d i d  t h e  a u t o p s y  n o t e  

t h a t  s h e  now w e i g h e d  200 p o u n d s ,  

D i d  y o u  see t h a t ?  

T h a t ’ s  p o s s i b l e  - 
Would y o u  l i k e  m e  t o  show i t  t o  y o u  or woul 

you accept my word for i t ?  

I ’ 11 accept y o u r  word .. 

O k a y ,  t h a n k  y o u ,  

Well d o c t o r ,  J a c q u e l i n e  QuaaB t h e n  

g a i n e d  60 p o u n d s  i n  l ess  t h a n  one  m o n t h ’ s  

p e r i o d  o f  t i m e  b e c a u s e  o f  t h e  c o m p l i c a t i o n s  

t h a t  r e s u l t e d  from D r  I M e d i n a ’ s  s u r g e r y s  

i s n ’ t  t h a t  t r u e ?  

MR. FULTON: O b j e  

I f  y o u  w o u l d  l i k e  t o  r e p h r a s e  t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  

s h e  d e v e l o p e d  c o m p l i c a t i o n s  a f t e r  a s u r g i c a l  

p r o c e d u r e ,  a n d  w h e t h e r  y o u  w a n t  t o  a t t r i b u t e  
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those complications to what D r ,  Medina d i d  I 

believe is up to the jury, I don’t agree 

with it phrased that way. 

This lady developed complications o f  

sepsis, and f r o m  those complications yess 

she gained substantial amounts o f  weight .. 

And the sepsis came on as a result o f  the 

surgery that Dr, Medina did, true? 

MR. F U L Y O N :  Obje 

The sepsis occurred in the post-operative 

period, and sepsis occurs for a number 

reasons. Sepsis can occur in people who 

don’t even have any surgery whatsoever, S o  

again -- 

Well, in th i s  particular case -- 

Because they follow temperly doesn’t mean 

that one caused the other - No,  1 really 

don’t agree with that - 
All right, let’s do it this way then, 

She went into the hospital and she 

weighed 141 pounds? 

Correct, I think we all recognize t h a t  she 

gained 60 pounds during that 

hosp i t a1 i zat ion I 

All right. So her -- 
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T h a t  was a s  a r e s u l t  o f  c o m p l i c a t i o n s  of  t h e  

d iseases  t h a t  h e  s h e  h a d ,  y e s .  

And t h e  d i s e a s e s  t h a t  s h e  h a d ,  d o c t o r ,  came 

o n  a f t e r  D r  - M e d i n a  d i d  h i s  s u r g e r y s  t r u e ?  

C o r r e c t  - 
A l l  r i g h t ,  N o w f  w e  a r e  g o i n g  t o  t a l k  a b o u t  

t h a t  i n  a moment I b u t  I j u s t  w a n t  

u p  t h i s  p o i n t  a b o u t  t h e  w e i g h t  g a i n  t o  

your t h o u g h t s  on t h i s ,  i f  you  w i l l .  

L e s s  t h a n  o n e  m o n t h  a f t e r  s h e ’ s  

a d m i t t e d  t o  t h e  h o s p i t a l  s h e  g a i n s  60 pounds  

or i n c r e a s e s  h e r  body w e i g h t  by  some 4 0  

p e r c e n t  ’I correct?  

Correct - 
And t h a t ” s  n o t  a good t h i n g  f o r  a p a t i e n t  t o  

h a v e  t h a t  k i n d  of  w e i g h t  g a i n  i n  t h a t  S ~ Q T - ~  

o f  a p e r i o d  o f  t i m e ,  is i t ?  

N o  - 
We know t h a t  s h e  w a s n ’ t  e a t i n g ,  c e r t a i n l y ,  

t o  g a i n  a l l  t h i s  w e i g h t -  W e  c a n  agree on 

t h a t ,  c a n ’ t  w e ?  

Y e s  - 
M R -  FULTO : O b j e c t i o n ,  I 

d o n ’ t  t h i n k  t h a t ’ s  w h a t  t h e  r eco rds  

show - 
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Well, d i d  s h e  h a v e  a n  e n d o t r a c h e a l  t u b e ,  

d o c t o r ,  p l a c e d  o n  J a n u a r y  l b t h ,  1987? 

A ,  C o r r e c t  - 
Q ,  And s h o r t l y  b e f o r e  s u r g e r y  t h e  

a n e s t h e s i o l o g i s t  w e i g h e d  h e r  a n d  wro te  a 

n o t e  i n  t h e  c h a r t  t h a t  i n d i c a t e d  t a t  s h e  a t  

t h a t  t i m e  w e i g h e d  -- l e t  m e  m e  f i n d  it s o  le 

c a n  be c e r t a i n  a b o u t  t h i s .  

H e r e  is t h e  a n e s t h e s i o l o g i s t ’ s  

e v a l u a t i o n  o n  J a n u a r y  12 ,  1987, d o c t o r ,  

Would  y o u  t e l l  t h e  members o f  t h e  j u r y  how 

much s h e  w e i g h e d  t h e  day  of s u r g e r y ,  t h a t  i s  

t h e  d a y  t h a t  D r  M e d i n a  o p e r a t e d -  o n  J a n u a r y  

1 2 ,  1987? 

A ,  141 p o u n d s .  

Q ,  A l l  r i g h t .  t h a n k  y o u .  

S o  some t ime  t h e n  b e t w e e n  J a n u a r y  12 

when  h e  ope ra t ed  a n d  J a n u a r y  -- I s h o u l d  s a y  

o n  J a n u a r y  l b t h ,  s h e  w a s  now g i v e n  a n  

e n d o t r a c h e a l  t u b e  s o  t h a t  s h e  c o u l d  b r e a t h e  

proper  1 y ?  

8.. Cor rec t  - 
Q ,  So s h e  c o u l d n ’ t  e a t  w i t h  a n  e n d o t r a c h e a l  

t u b e  i n  h e r  m o u t h ,  c o u l d  s h e ,  O r .  M a r k o w i t z ?  

A ,  C o r r e c t  - B u t  s h e  c a n  be  f e d ,  
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T h a t ’ s  w h a t  I w a s  g o i n g  t o  a s k  y o u  a b o u t  

n o w ,  S h e  w a s  g i v e n  f l u i d s  to t h e  e x t e n t  

t h a t  t h i s  woman now g a i n e d  60 p o u n d s  in a 

p e r i o d  o f  less t h a n  o n e  m o n t h ,  t r u e ?  

C o r r e c t  I 

T h a t ’ s  b e c a u s e  o n e  of  t h e  t h i n g s  t h a t  

h a p p e n e d  t o  h e r  f o l l o w i n g  t h e  s u r g e r y  by 

e d i n a  w a s  t h a t  h e r  k i d n e y s  f a i l e d ?  

C o r r e c t  - 
So I t h i n k  w e  c a n  agree,  s o  t h a t  w e  c a n  move 

o n ,  she d i d  n o t  g a i n  t h e  60 p o u n d s  from arty 

e x c e s s i v e  e a t i n g  t h a t  s h e  d i d  w h i l e  s h e  

i n  t h e  h o s p i t a l ?  

C o r r e c t  - 
A l l  r i g h t  - 

What h a p p e n s  t o  a p e r s o n  w h o  g a i n s  t h i s  

much w e i g h t  from t h e  f l u i d s  t h a t  she w a s  

g i v e n  i n  t h i s  s h o r t  o f  p e r i o d  o f  t i m e ,  

d o c t o r ?  I n  your e x p e r i e n c e ,  w h a t  h a p p e n s  t o  

t h e  o r g a n  s y s t e m s ?  

T h e  f l u i d  g e t s  d i s t r i b u t e d  ac ross  a l l  orga 

s y s t e m s ;  t h a t  m e a n s  b r a i n ,  l i v e r ,  h e a r t ,  

l u n g s ,  k i d n e y s ,  s o f t  t i s s u e ,  P a t i e n t s  

become s w o l l e n  a n d  b l o a t e d  a n d  t h e  f u n c t i o n  

of  e a c h  o n e  o f  t h o s e  o r g a n s  c a n  be s e r i o u s l y  
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impaired. 

When Jacqueline Quaal was admitte 

hospital on January 5, 1987 they 

vital signs, didn’t they? 

Yes - 
And just so the jury’s familiar 

we’re talking about her temperature, her 

blood pressure, her pulse and her 

respiration, correct? 

Correct. 

And each one of these vital signs or 

the doctors refers to as vital signs were 

normal , weren ’t they? 

Correct - 
Including her respiration? 

Respiratory rate - 
Her respiratory rate, 

Respiration refers to all pulmonary 

funct ions - 
Her respiratory rate 1 6  times pel: 

Correct - 
And what’s the normal range, doctor? 

Somewhere between 1 2  and 20 we accepted a s  

normal - 
So she fell right in t e middle a f  the 
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n o r m a l  r a n g e  f o r  t h e  r e s p i r a t o r y  r a t e ?  

C o r r e c t  - 
I s  i t  y o u r  o p i n i o n ,  D r ,  M a r k o w i t z ,  t h a t  

J a c q u e l i n e  Q u a a l  d i e d  i n  t h e  h o s p i t a l  f r o m  

c o m p l i c a t i o n s  t h a t  d e v e l o p e d  f o l l o w i n g  t h e  

s u r g e r y  b y  D r .  M e d i n a  o n  J a n u a r y  1 2 ,  f987? 

- 
T h e  s u r g e r y  t h a t  was a c t u a l l y  d o n e  o n  

Y e s  - 

E l e c t i v e  i n  t h e  s e n s e  t h a t  i t  w a s  not e m e r g e n t ,  

J a n u a r y  1 2 ,  I987 b y  B r .  M e d i n a  was e l e c t i v e  

s u r g e r y ,  w a s n ’ t  i t ?  

s t l l  r i g h t .  -i 
B u t  t h i s  was n o t  t h e  k i n d  o f  a p r o c e d u r e  

t h a t  y o u  w o u l d  s e n d  s o m e o n e  h o m e  f o r  a n d  

b r i n g  t h e m  b a c k  o n  a n  e l e c t i v e  d a t e ,  

You m u s t  a g r e e ,  h o w e v e r  w i t h  Dr e d i n a  who 

w r o t e  i n  t h e  c h a r t  t h a t  t h i s  was a n  e l e c t i v e  

s u r g e r y  t h a t  was p e r f o r m e d  o n  h e r  o n  J a n u a r y  

12, 1989? 

1_11_ --- 

A .  A g a i n .  i t  w a s  e l e c t i v e  i n  t h e  s e n s e  t h a t  

t h e y  d i d  n o t  h a v e  t o  e m e r g e n t l y  p e r f o r m  t h e  

o p e r a t  i o n  

A l l  r i g h t .  
u i--- 

Q .  

A ,  B u t  t h e y  w o u l d  n o t  l i k e l y  h a v e  b e e n  a b l e  t o  

s e n d  h e r  h o m e .  
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A l l  r i g h t .  T h e y  h a d  t o  d e t e r m i n e  w h a t  t h e  

s o u r c e  of t h e  p a i n  i n  t h e  l e f t  s i d e  of  h e r  

r i b  cage was? 

I t h i n k  t h e y  h a d  a f a i r l y  good r e a s o n  why ,  

given t h a t  s h e  h a d  r i b  f r a c t u r e s ,  

A l l  r i g h t ,  How l o n g  w a s  s h e  a c t u a l l y  i n  

s u r g e r y  on J a n u a r y  12 ,  1987? 

I w o u l d  h a v e  t o  look a t  t h e  a n e s t h e s i a  

. r e c o r d  a g a i n ,  

A l l  r i g h t ,  L e t  m e  f i n d  i t  for y o u ,  d o c t o r .  

F o u r  t o  f i v e  h o u r s  comes t o  m i n d .  

I ’ m  sorry’?  

F o u r  t o  f i v e  h o u r s  co es  t o  mind, B u t  T 

don’ t  recal l  t h e  e x a c t  t i m e .  - / 

&ON: W y  is t h e  t i m e ?  

You p r o b a b l y  h a v  w r i t t e n  down 

t h e r e  - 
TELEONE: No, I d o n  ” %  , 

w r i t t e n  down 

TELEONE: No, I d o n  ” %  , 

R ,  FULTON: I t h  OLI 

e a l o t  o f  n o t  

M R .  M O N T  

TELEONE: 

t h r o  

FULTON: I t h  OLI 

v e  a l o t  o f  n o t  

M R .  M O N T  
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D r .  Markowitz, is it true that there were a 

number o f  very serious complications 

following the elective surgery that was done 

by D r .  Medina on January 1 2 ,  1 9  

M R -  FULTO : Objection to the 

word elective, 

Y e s  - 
Let’s go over some o f  them, if we can, so 

the jury has a full appreciation-of what 

actually happened here, 

Now, we have already talked about the 

weight gain, and that certainly was one o f  

the complications that set in following the 

surgery , wasn’t it? 

The weight gain occurred as a result of 

therapy that was administered to rs. QtnaaP 

to treat the complications that she had- 

A 1 1 right, 

The discharge summary from Richmond 

Heights General Hospital indicates, or lists 

I should say, a number o f  items that I would 
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like you to give u s  the benefit o f  your 

explanation on. And we’ll take them one at 

a time, all right? 

Certainly, 

ow, the discharge summary. so the folks 

understand, is a part of the hospital -- 

official hospital records in which the 

attending physician or the operating surgeon 

in effect summarizes why t h e  person was 

admitted, what was done, what the lab tests 

showed, and what the person’s condition is 

on discharge. 

Is that basically what happens? 

That’s basically true, it isn’t necessarily 

dictated by the attending physician, It Bs 

often dictated by the house officer, 

Anot her doct or i n t he hosp i t a l? 

Correct 

And then co-signed after review, h o ~ e ~ u l l ~ ~  

by the admitting o r  the operating doctor? 

That’s correct - 
Now, Cause Number 3 on the discharge 

diagnosis is acute respiratory distress 

syndrome, and that’s listed on the death 

certificate also, 
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D r -  Markowitz, did Jacqueline Buaal 

have acute respiratory distress syndrome on 

admission to the hospital? 

Did that come on following the surgery by 

D r -  Medina? 

It developed post-operat ively yes - 
I s  that a good thing for a patient to have? 

No ., 
tJhy not? 

Well, respiratory distress is really exactly 

what it says, the patient has difficulty 

breathing, Clearly that’s a real problem, 

And if somea6e has difficulty breathing an 

it’s only minor, there are certain 

conservative measures that can be taken to 

treat it. But if those conservative 

measures aren ’t adequate, then the pat ient 

may have to receive artificial ventilatory 

support for a certain given period of time 

until those lungs will function properly 

again - 
S o  it clearly is a very serious matter 

Is it life threatening? 

It certainly can be, 
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I’m sure that in your career you have seen a 

number of patients who have died from this 

very disease entity of acute respiratory 

distress syndrome. 

It’s a diagnosis, I donst know if it’s a 

disease entity because there are manyp many 

things that can cause it - 
In any in any event, we know she didnst 

come into the hospital with it but she got 

it sometime after the surgery by D r -  Medina? 

That’s correct - 
Now also, I think you told us that in your 

professional opinion Jackie Gluaal. died of 

sepsis, which in a general way of speaking, 

I suppose, is fulminant o r  rampant infection 

that’s invaded the blood, correct? 

Correct I 

She did not have sepsis on admission to the 

hospital, did she, doctor? 

No, she did not, 

I s  that a good thing for a patient to have, 

sepsis? 

N o ,  it’s clearly a very bad thing to have. 

If there is an infection in the blood, such 

as occurred in th i s  case, as I understand 
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i t ,  this can affect also all the organ 

systems, true? 

True, 

And did this sepsis, here did it come f r o m ,  

in your opinion, doctor? I mean, what was 

the site o f  the original infection here? 

Well, sepsis means uncontrolled infection, 

and that can occur from one of two ways, 

Either there is a focus of infection in t 

body, that is subsequently liberated; OT 

there’s a portal of entry somehow either 

through any particular organ where the 

organism, the bacteria, if you ill, or even 

a virus, which is harder to characterize, 

but where the bacteria gets into the blood 

stream from any given site in the body, 

So either a patient may carry it w i t  

him o r  her or it may be introduced in the 

post-operative period, as it probably 

occurred in place, in this situation- 
0- 

J 

A s  far as Mrs. Quaal is concerned, she 

may have had an infected plural space or  it 

may have been a portal o f  entry through her 

lungs afterwards, 

You just said -- I thought I heard you say 
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the sepsis probably came on after the 

surgery -- well it did come on after the, 

surgery in this case? 

A. Yes - 
Q -  And was this something that was related in 

any way to the bronchopleural fistula, 

YOU believe? 

A -  Whether bronchopleural fistula exist or not 

bronchopleural fistula frequently become 

infected, but you don”t have to have 

bronchopleural fistula existing for sepsis 

to occur - 
And this could have been frpm an 

infected area in the pleural space in 

Mrs, Quaal or it could have been introduce 

in some other fashion - 
Q -  Can this sepsis, which in your opinion, too 

her life, can it affect the liver? 

A ,  Yes .. 
Q .  Can it affect the spleen? 

A ,  Yes - 
Q -  Can it affect the kidneys? 

A .  It can affect any organs, per se.. 

Q -  Because the blood circulates throughout t h e  

body and has infection in it, now I assume 
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a n y  o r g a n  t h a t  i t  pas ses  t h r o u g h ,  a n d  of  

c o u r s e  t h a t ’ s  t h e  f u n c t i o n  t h a t  part of t h e  

b l o o d  is  g o i n g  t o  c a u s e  t h i s  i n f e c t i o n ,  

i s n ’ t  i t ?  

C o r r e c t  - 
N o w  o n  t h e  d i s c h a r g e  s u m m a r y  o n c e  a g a i n ,  

t h e r e  is r e f e r e n c e  t o  a r e c u r r e n t  

p n e u m o t h o r a x  .. 

N o w  w h a t  is a p n e u m o t h o r a x ,  

Pneumo m e a n s  a i r ,  t h o r a x  m e a n s  c h e s t . .  So 

p n e u m o t h o r a x  is a i r  i n  t h e  c h e s t .  And t h i s  

o c c u r r e d  a f t e r  h e r  s u r g e r y ,  w h i c h  is a 

f r e q u e n t  c o m p l i c a t i o n  of s u r g e r y  ..for 

empyemas  - 
D i d  s h e  h a v e  t h i s  be fo re  s h e  w e n t  % o  t h e  

h o s p i t a l ,  d o c t o r ?  

N o ,  w e  d o n ’ t  b e l i e v e  so- 

I t  came o n  sometime a f t e r  t h e  s u r g e r y  b y  Dr. 

Pled i na? 

C o r r e c t  - 
How d o e s  o n e  t r e a t  t h i s  c o n d i t i o n ?  1 s  i t  a 

t r e a t a b l e  c o n d i t i o n ,  p n e u m o t h o r a x ?  

Y e s  - 
H o w  d o e s  o n e  t r e a t  i t ?  

Well, y o u  c a n  t r e a t  i t  e i t h e r  w i t h  
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aspiration or  placement of a chest tube. 

And usually a placement of a chest tube wit 

a one way valve will allow evacuation of the 

air so that air can escape but not re-enter, 

And did they in fact, after the surgery by 

Dr, Medina, have several more procedures 

where they inserted that chest tubes into 

Jacqueline Quaal? 

I think she required numerous chest tube 

insertions for isolated localized a r e a s  o f  

pneumothorax in the post-operative period. 

When she got to the hospital on January 5, 

1987 she didnPt require an endotracheal tu 

at that time or a chest tube at that time, 

did she? 

That’s correct - 
Incidentally, when she got to the hospital 

on January 5, 1?87, they examined her liver 

and her spleen, I mean, that’s something 

they do on an admission to the hospital, 

isn’t it? 

I n  a very limited fashion. 

Well, they feel for it. I mean, the 

doctor’s trained hands palpate or feel, i f  

you will, the abdomen to determine if there 
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is any enlargement o f  the spleen -- 

Correct - 
-- or the liver, correct? 

Correct - 
Do you know what the result o f  the 

examination was in Jacqueline Quaaf9s case 

when she was admitted to the hospital for 

the examination -- 

No, I don’t. 

_-  of the liver and the spleen? 

I don’t recall, 

I would only add one word o f  caution to 

that And that is, the most diseased liver 

is highly contracted, scarred and small an 

will be impossible to feel, 

S o  the fact that they couldn’t feel t 

liver, if the liver was or was not enlarged 

really would not give any indication of 

whether she had liver disease or not. 

All right, Well, when the doctors examine 

her abdomen on admission to the hospital -- 

let m e  find the page, if you will, okay? 

Sure - 
This is in the progress notes on January 5, 

1987, And the doctor who examined her at 
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t h a t  t i m e ,  I B v e  h i g h l i g h t e d  i t  t h e r e ,  

d o c t o r ,  s o  t h a t  w e  c a n  -- w h a t  d i d  t h e y  s a y  

a b o u t  t h a t  -- I t h i n k  t h e  terms t h e y  u s e  a r e  

h e p a t  o s p  1 e n o m e g a  1 y I 

Cor rec t  - 
Hepa to  r e fe r s  t o  t h e  l i v e r ,  r i g h t ?  

Y e s  - 
And s p l e n o  refers t o  t h e ?  

S p l e e n  .. 
And m e g a l y  m e a n s ?  

E n l a r g e d  .. 

And w h a t  d i d  he f i n d  on e x a m i n a t i o n ?  

kJell, t h a t ’ s  a n  i n t e r e s t i n g  way o f  p u t t i n g  

i t  - 
N e g a t i v e  p a l p a b l e  h e p a t o s p l e n o  

I g a t h e r  h e  m e a n s  t h e  l i v e r  a n d  s p l e e n  a r e  

n o t  e n l a r g e d  - 
Are n o t  e n l a r g e d ,  

C o r r e c t  - 
T h a n k  y o u ,  P e r h a p s  you w o u l d  p h r a s e  i t  

d i f f e r e n t l y ,  b u t  I t h i n k  w e  u n d e r s t a n d  i t ?  

Y e s  - 
A l l  r i g h t .  

I s  i t  t r u e  a l s o  t h a t  o n  a d m i s s i o n  t o  

t h e  h o s p i t a l  t h a t  s h e  h a d  n o  k i d n e y  p r o b l e m s  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

1 4  

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

2 4  

25 

63 

either, doctor? 

A s  nearly as we understand it, at least from 

o u r  history - 
Okay, On the discharge summary, after th i s  

lady died they also note that she had 

hypotension and hypoalbuminemia, Those are 

two very big words- 

What does hypotension mean? 

Hypotension refers to her blood pressure an 

it refers to the fact that her blood 

pressure was low. And blood pressure c a n  be 

low for a number of reasons in both an acute 

and chronic setting. 

Hypoalbuminemia refers albumin which is 

a protein that is found in the blood and is 

generally regarded as a handle on sameone’s 

nutritional status, And if y o u r  albumin is 

normal, then it’s a fairly good i n ~ i c a ~ i ~ ~ ’ ~  

although not always accurate, that your 

nutritional status is acceptable. 

I f  the albumin is very low, it may be 

an indication that you*ve either recently 

lost a lot of weight, that your nutritional 

status is poor, or  that you have a lot of 

extra fluid on board. 
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I t  c a n  a l s o  b e  l o w  -- w e l l  t h o s e  are  

t h e  p r i m a r y  r e a s o n s ,  

S h e  d i d  n o t  h a v e  a n y  p r o b l e m s  w i t h  h e r  b l o o d  

p r e s s u r e  o n  a d m i s s i o n  t o  t h e  h o s p i t a l ,  d i d  

s h e ?  

o t  a s  w e  u n d e r s t a n d  i t ,  n o ,  

Can  w e  agree t h a t  t o o  was f o l l o w i n g  t h e  

s u r g e r y  b y  D r ,  M e d i n a  as a r e s u l t  of  p a r t  o f  

t h e  c o m p l i c a t i o n s  t h a t  se t  i n  follo 

s u r g e r y ?  

Y e s .  

N o w ,  a l s o  l i s t e d  o n  t h e  d i s c h a r g e  ~ ~ m ~ a r y  is 

t h a t  t h e y  f o u n d  a b l o o d  c l o t  i n  t h e  

e n d o t r a c h e a l  t u b e ,  

A f t e r  t h e  s u r g e r y  b y  D r .  M e d i n a  t h e y  

h a d  t o  p u t  a t u b e  i n t o  h e r  a f e w  d a y s  a f t e r  

t h e  s u r g e r y ,  d i d n ’ t  t h e y ?  

F o u r  d a y s  p o s t - o p e r a t i v e l y .  

And a s  I u n d e r s t a n d  i t ,  t h e  s e c r e t i o n s ,  

e i t h e r  t h e  m u c u s  p l u g s  or t h e  b lood  c a n  c l o t  

a n d  t h e y  b l o c k  t h e  passageway or t h e  a i r w a y  

for t h e  p a t i e n t ,  d o n ’ t  t h e y ?  

T h a t ’ s  correc t  - 
And t h e  p a t i e n t  c a n ’ t  b r e a t h e  a t  a l l ,  c a n  

t h e y ?  
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N o t  i f  t h e  e n d o t r a c h e a l  t u b e  is t h e  o n l y  

s o u r c e  o f  a i r f l o w  i n  a n d  o u t  o f  t h e  l u n g ,  

no I 

Was t h i s  t h e  o n l y  s o u r c e  o f  t h e  a i r f l o w  i n  

t h i s  l a d y ,  as f a r  a s  y o u  know? 

C o r r e c t  .. 
So i n  e f fec t  w h a t  h a p p e n e d ,  f o l l o w i n g  t h e  

s u r g e r y  by Dr, M e d i n a  t h e y  h a d  t o  p u t  t h i s  

t u b e  down h e r  t h r o a t ,  a   lot got in t h e  

a n d  s h e  w a s n ’ t  a b l e  t o  b r e a t h e  t h e n ?  

Well, I d o n y t  know t h a t  e x a c t l y  t e m p e r l y  

o c c u r r e d  l i k e  t h a t ,  S h e  was r e - i n t u b a t e d ,  

m e a n i n g  p u t  back o n  t h e  v e n t i l a t o r  f o u r  

a f t e r  h e r  s u r g e r y ,  And a t  some p o i n t  i n  t h e  

t h e  n e x t  n u m b e r  o f  w e e k s  t h a t  s h e  w a s  i n  t h e  

h o s p i t a l ,  s h e  d e v e l o p e d  some k i n d  of  

o b s t r u c t i o n  of t h e  e n d o t r a c h e a l  t u b e ,  w h i c h  

a s  I u n d e r s t a n d  i t ,  r e q u i r e d  t h e  

e n d o t r a c h e a l  t u b e  t o  be  r ep laced -  

B u t  t h a t ’ s  o n e  of t h e  t h i n g s  a n y  

i n t e n s i v e  care  u n i t  w o u l d  be c o n s t a n t l y  o n  

t h e  l o o k o u t  f o r ,  s i n c e  y o u  a r e  f r e q u e n t l y  

p u t t i n g  s u c t i o n  c a t h e t e r s  down t h e  

e n d o t r a c h e a l  t u b e  t o  h e l p  a p a t i e n t  e v a c u a t e  

s e c r e t i o n s ,  One o f  t h i n g s  y o u  a r e  a l w a y s  
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attuned to is, is there an obstruction in 

the endotracheal tube. 

Certainly one of the things you have to loo 

for if you a re  in the I C U ,  correct? 

Correct 

And i n  this particular case, if I’m not 

mistaken, the day before she died is when 

they found this blood clot in the 

endotracheal tube? 

Correct - 
ow also listed on the discharge summary is 

the disease entity known as a disseminated 

intravascular coagulopat hy - And- that’s 

another big word, and if I ’ m  not mistaken 

you sometimes abbreviate it as a D I C ,  true? 

Cor rec t  - 
Did this lady have a DIC when she was 

admitted to the hospital? 

No - 
Uhen did it come o n ,  doctor, do you know? 

Well, I don’t know that they proved that she 

did have DIC, 

A s  you recall from our previous 

conversation you need, to prove the 

diagnosis of DIC, you need to demonstrate 
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not only decreased levels of clotting 

factors, but also evidence o f  fiber and 

split products. And I don’t know that those 

were ever drawn in her hospital COUTS~. 

It’s possible that she certainly could 

have started bleeding post-operatively, An 

sepsis alone can stimulate both DIC and 

bleeding problems in general. A n  

think that it makes -- I don’t k n o w  that you 

have to put a handle on it and necessarily 

call it DfC, Suffice it to say that she 

certainly had problems with bleeding 

afterwards too, 

It’s not a good thing for a patient to hawe 

DIC? 

No, i t ’ s  a v e r y  bad thing for a patient to 

have I 

They bleed from almost every site where 

there is an opening in the body, whether it 

be from a needle or sometimes they bleed 

from the nose; isn’t that true? 

They can bleed from any site, correct- 

Was this also one of the complications, in 

your judgment, from Dr. Medina*s surgery? 

M R -  FULTQN: Objection, 
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One o f  the complications o f  sepsis, yes. 

Incidentally, I think you had mentioned i n  

your direct testimony that they had found a 

cirrhotic or a cirrhosis in this 1ady”s 

liver after she died? 

Correct - 
Now is it true, doctor. that a 

gastrointestinal bypass such as this lady 

had some s i x  years prior to this can cause 

cirrhosis o f  the fiver? 

It can, in a small percentage of patients 

with intestinal bypasses, 

How about hepatitis? I f  a person”s had 

hepatitis, does that cause cirrhosis o f  t h e  

1 iver? 

It can go on and become chronic and cause 

post-hepat it ic cirrhosis, That should be 

detectable by the patient’s serologies- 

You’d know i f  a patient was positive f o r  

hepatitis A ,  B or C ,  

There is a way to tell that, isn”t there? 

Y e s  - 
There’s a certain t e s t  that’s done? 

Yes - 
And do you know whether or not Jacqueline 
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Quaal ever had hepatitis? 

I don’t- 

All right- 

Had they been positive it would have been 

noted in the chart, because t h a t g s  usually a 

red flag to any health care worker since it 

certainly can be contagious if itss serum 

hepat it is - 
Well, if a person’s had this hepatitis, this 

certainly is the kind of think that can 

result in a cirrhotic or cirrhosis o f  the 

liver, is that true? 

Yes - 
1 have something from Smith Cline Clinical 

Laboratories on January 7, 1985 regarding 

Jacqueline Buaal, And a hepatitis profile 

was done. 

HR, FULTQN: Wh 

I Fulton? 

o u  tell m e  it’s 
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o u t  o f  t h e  h o s p i t a l  r ecord?  

R MONTELEONE: 

say o n  i t ?  

1 

l i k e  Yhe res t  o f  

/' t h i s  on  h e r e ,  

MR I MONTEPONE: I " m  g o i n g  e o  

I u n d e r s t  

f r o m .  

A r e  y o u  g o  o m a r k  i t  as a n  

e x h i b i t ?  

i 
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D r ,  M a r k o w i t z ,  I a p p r e c i a t e  y o u  may n o t  h a v e  

been g i v e n  t h a t  by r - F u l t o n ,  maybe you 

h a v e n  't s e e n  i t  b e f o r e ?  

o s  I h a v e n ' t ,  

I t  d o e s  i n  f a c t  i n d i c a t e  t h a t  t h i s  l a d y  i n  

1985 h a d  -- i n  t h e  p a s t  h a d  h e p a t i t i s ,  

correct?  

Y e s -  I t  s a y s  h e p a t i t i s  C a n t i b o d i e s  

p r e s e n t ,  w h i c h  w o u l d  mean t h a t  s h e  came i n  

c o n t a c t  w i t h  i t  ,. I t  d o e s n ' t  n e c e s s a r i l y  

mean t h a t  s h e  h a d  h e p a t i t i s  per se.. 

S o m e h o w  s h e  came i n  c o n t a c t  w i t h  i t ?  

Cor r ec t  - 
M R .  FULTO 

f l "  t '  

-3 
mark t h a t  a s  a n  

do i t  when  

knows  i t  I 
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Doctor, the last two items on the discharge 

summary indicate that rs, Quaal had 

congestive heart failure, She did not have 

congestive heart failure when she was 

admitted to the hospital, did she? 

Not from any evidence we see in t 

no ., 

And they examined her heart an 

indications were that her heart was 

apparently normal, did you see that? 

She had a normal cardiac exam on the 

history -- on the physical exam, yes, 

On January 5, 1987? 

Yes - 
And then as a result of these complications 

that set in following the surgery by Dr. 

edina, the congestive heart failure came 

on? 

Yes, I think that ’s a reflect ion -- it’s 

hard to know whether she had true congestive 

heart failure or just heart failure from 

sepsis, It’s really the same, basically the 

same thing, 

Mould the sepsis or the blood infection, 

would that affect the heart itself? 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1 1  

12 

13 

14 

15 

1 6  

1 7  

18 

1 9  

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

a3 

It can destroy the heart 

Finally they list on the discharge summary 

that she had progressive renal failure. 

Renal refers to her kidneys? 

Yes ., 

All right- She, on admission to t 

hospital, didnet have kidney failure, did 

she, doctor? 

No - 
And after the surgery by Dr, Medinis is 

it came on? 

MR - FULTON: Object ion 

Once she developed her sepsis, yes, 

All these items, as I understand 

are telling us, are somewhat inter-related? 

Yes =, 

The infection, the blood or the sepsis 

contributed to the DIC, the congestive h e a r  

failure, the progressive renal failure, 

they’re all bound together, aren’t they, i n  

some -- 

I think theyere triggered by the same 

stimulus. 

Which was? 

Sepsis - 
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I o m i t t e d  o n e  i t e m  b e c a u s e  I w a n t e d  t o  h a v e  

y o u  e x p l a i n  t h i s  i n  j u s t  a l i t t l e  b i t  more 

d e t a i l  - 
Is t h e  f a c t  t h a t  s h e  h a d  a 

b r o n c h o p l e u r a l  f i s t u l a  -- now a f i s t u l a  is 

a n  a b n o r m a l  c o n n e c t i o n  b e t w e e n  t o o r g a n s  o r  

t w o  p a r t s  of  a b o d y ,  t r u e ?  

True - 
I t ’ s  n o t  n o r m a l l y  a good t h i n g  f o r  a p a t i e n t  

t o  h a v e ,  is i t ?  

N o ,  i t ’s  a bad t h i n g ,  

S h e  d i d n ’ t  h a v e  t h i s  f i s t u l a  when s h e  came 

i n t o  t h e  h o s p i t a l ,  d i d  s h e ?  

No - 
And when  Y O U  s a y  b r o n c h o p l e u r a l ,  w e  a r e  

r e f e r r i n g  t o  t h a t  p a r t  o f  t h e  chest i n  w h i ~ ~  

a n  o p e n i n g  somehow h a d  b e e n  c rea ted  i n t o  t h e  

l u n g ,  And now when  s h e  w o u l d  b r e a t h e  i n  

a i r ,  i n s t e a d  of t h e  a i r  g o i n g  o u t  as i t  does  

f o r  y o u  o r  f o r  m e ,  i t  w a s  b e i n g  t r a p p e d  

u n d e r  t h e  s k i n ,  i f  y o u  w i l l ,  w a s n ’ t  i t ?  

Well, b r o n c h o p l e u r a l  f i s t u l a  r e fe r s  t o  a 

c o n n e c t i o n  b e t w e e n  t h e  b r o n c h u s ,  w h i c h  is 

t h e  a i r w a y  i n s i d e  t h e  l u n g ,  a n d  t h e  p l u r a ,  

w h i c h  is t h e  s u r f a c e  of  t h e  l u n g .  R a t h e r  
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t h a n  h a v i n g  t h e  a i r  t r a v e l  o u t  t o  t h e  

f u n c t i o n a l  u n i t  of  t h e  l u n g ,  w h i c h  is t h e  

a l v e o l u s ,  w h o s e  i n t e g r i t y  is i n t a c t ,  t h e r e  

is somehow a r u p t u r e  o f  t h a t  a n d  t h e  a i r  

f r i t t e r s  o u t  i n t o  t h e  -- t h r o u g h  t h e  p l u r a  

i n t o  t h e  space b e t w e e n  t h e  l u n g  a n d  t h e  

c h e s t  w a l l .  

I t  d o e s n ’ t  n e c e s s a r i l y  get i n t o  t h e  

s k i n  per s e ,  u n l e s s  Y O U  m a k e  a n  i n c i s i o n  

i n t o  t h e  s k i n ,  SO a b r o n c h o p l e u r a l  f i s t u l a  

m e a n s  a n  a b n o r m a l  c o n n e c t i o n  b e t w e e n  t h e  

i n s i d e  o f  t h e  a i r w a y  a n d  t h e  s u r f a c e  o f  t 

Bung ,  And t h i s  c a n  o c c u r  a f t e r  %Re s u r g e r y  

f o r  empyema, 

D i d  t h i s ,  i n  t h i s  l a d y ’ s  case ,  r e s u l t  f rom 

t h e  s u r g e r y  t h a t  w a s  per formed by  Dr, 

Pled i n a ?  

Y e s  - 
A l l  i n  a l l ,  t h i s  s u r g e r y  t h a t  w a s  

Dr, M e d i n a  o n  J a n u a r y  1 2 ,  1987, d i d  n o t  t u r n  

o u t  v e r y  w e l l  

Well, I t h i n k  a m o r t a l i t y  f o l l o w i n g  a n  

o p e r a t i o n  w o u l d  a l l o w  o n e  t o  c o n c l u d e  t h a t  

t h e  r e s u l t s  w e r e  n o t  p a r t i c u l a r l y  good ,  no, 
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i t ,  d o c t o r ?  

MR, FULTON: O b j e c t i o n .  

A ,  No, I d o n ’ t  t h i n k  i t  did, 

M R .  MONTELEONE: T h a t ” s  all I 

h a v e  r i g h t  now - T h a n k  y o u ,  D a ,  

Markowitz - 

MR. FULTON: J u s t  t h e s e  couple 

of  q u e s t i o n s ,  Dr. M a r k o w i t z ,  

- - -  

REDIRECT EXA 

B Y  M R ,  FULTON: 

Q ,  You have a n s w e r e d  many q u e s t i o n s - a s k e d  o f  

y o u  t o d a y  b y  Mr. M o n t e l e o n e .  h a v e  y o u  n o t ?  

A ,  Y e s  - 
Q -  You Rave a l s o  h a d  t h e  o c c a s i o n ,  h a v e  y o u  

n o t ,  t o  r e v i e w  t h e  t e s t i m o n y  o f  Dr, K a u f e r ,  

w h i c h  I h a d  s e n t  t o  y o u ,  is t h a t  n o t  t r u e ?  

A ,  T h a t  is  t r u e -  

Q -  Do a n y  of  t h e s e  q u e s t i o n s ,  and y o u r  a n s w e r s  

b y  Mr. M o n t e l e o n e ,  o r  t h e  r e v i e w  o f  t h e  

t e s t i m o n y  o f  Dr. K a u f e r  i n  any way c h a n g e  

y o u r  o p i n i o n  b a s e d  o n  r e a s o n a b l e  m e d i c a l  

c e r t a i n t y  a n d  p r o b a b i l i t y  as t o  w h e t h e r  D r -  

M e d i n a ,  i n  o p e r a t i n g  o n  M r s -  Q u a a l ,  m e t  t h e  
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standard of care of physicians in the 

discipline o f  and operating on the lungs an 

in the thoracic area? 

R I MONTELEONE: Object ion to 

the form of the question, 

No, I don’t feel what he did was 

substandard - 
And again, based on reasonable m e ~ ~ c a ~  

certainty and probability, what, i n  your 

opinion, was the proximate cause of the 

death o f  r s ,  Quaal? 

M R ,  MONTELEONE: I object 

again. Outside the scope o f  

redirect - 
Plrs, Quaal, I believe, died from the effects 

of  sepsis, and the sepsis developed a f t e r  a 

decortication o f  a trapped lung- The 

decortication is basically the only 

procedure you can do under those 

circumstances to free up the lung to allow 

it to function, 

Sepsis occurred i n  this woman most 

likey because she was immunocompromised, but 

for whatever reason, it subsequently 

destroyed m o s t  of her organs, She had a 
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very rapid downhill course with loss o f  

function of most o f  the organ systems. 

And can these problems o f  sepsis 

just discussed occur after surgery be that 

surgery a great length o f  time or a limite 

length of time? 

M R .  MONTELEONE: Objection- 

That’s correct - 
M R ,  FULTON: No further 

quest ions - 
f lR ,  MONTELEONE: Thank Y O U ,  

V I D E O  TECHNICIA : Doctors you  

have the right to review th i s  tape 

or you may waive that rig 

THE WITNESS: I would like %a 

review it - 
VIDEO TECHNICIAN: And will 

counsel waive filing of t 

M R ,  FULTON: Yes. 

TELEONE: Sure. 

- - -  

(Deposition Concluded- 1 
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T H E  STATE OF O H I O ,  ) 
) 

COUNTY O F  C U Y A H O G A . )  
CERT I F I CATE 

I ,  Richard G -  DelMonico, a Notary Public 

within and for  the State o f  Ohio, duly 

commissioned and qualified, do hereby certify 

that the above-named A L A N  M A R K O W I T Z ,  ,D ,  , was 

by m e ,  before the giving of his deposition, first 

duly sworn to testify to the truth, the 

truth and nothing but the truth; that the 

deposition as above set Forth was reduced to 

writing by me by means of stenotype an 

transcribed into typewriting under m y  direction 

by computer-aided transcription; that the said 

deposition was taken pursuant to agreement at t 

time and place aforesaid; that I am not a relative 

or attorney of either party or otherwise 

interested in the event o f  t h i s  action- 

I N  WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set 

and seal of office at Cleveland, Ohio, t 

ay, 1991, 

Richard G. DelMonico, Notary Public 
Within and for the State o f  Ohio 

M y  Commission Expires April 1 8 ,  1993- 


